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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

9:50 a.m.: 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next cause before the 

Commission i s Case Number 14,000, the A p p l i c a t i o n of the 

New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r a c o n t i n u i n g — a 

compliance order against Northstar O i l and Gas. 

Are counsel present? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would you be so k i n d as t o 

make your announcements on the record, please? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: G a i l MacQuesten, r e p r e s e n t i n g 

the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . I have one witness. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe, 

rep r e s e n t i n g Northstar O i l and Gas Corporation. I have one 

witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Bruce, do we need 

t o phone your witness now, or would you r a t h e r w a i t u n t i l 

he t e s t i f i e s ? 

MR. BRUCE: Why don't we w a i t u n t i l he t e s t i f i e s ? 

That way — I t h i n k he's on a c e l l phone, and I ' d hate f o r 

h i s c e l l phone t o die out on him l i k e mine normally does. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: I don't t h i n k i t ' l l be — take 

exceedingly long. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, I b e l i e v e t h i s 

i s your A p p l i c a t i o n . 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would you l i k e t o begin w i t h 

an opening statement? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes, please. 

The O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n i s moving t o 

reopen Case 13,920 t o c l a r i f y the requirements of Order 

R-12,779-A. 

You should have an e x h i b i t packet i n f r o n t of 

you. The f i r s t e x h i b i t i s the a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e and 

p u b l i c a t i o n f o r t h i s reopened hearing. 

E x h i b i t 2 i s a copy of the t r a n s c r i p t of the 

Commission Hearing t h a t r e s u l t e d i n the order t h a t we're 

going t o be t a l k i n g about today. 

And E x h i b i t 3 i s a copy of the order i t s e l f . 

The remaining e x h i b i t s w i l l be addressed through 

the testimony. 

As you may r e c a l l , t h i s i s a plugging case on two 

i n a c t i v e w e l l s . The OCD had been t r y i n g t o get N o r t h s t a r 

t o b r i n g the w e l l s i n t o compliance since 1999. 

By the time the case was heard by the Commission 

de novo i n 2007, Northstar had plugged the wellbores of the 

two w e l l s . 

Northstar's focus a t the Commission hearing was 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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on reducing or e l i m i n a t i n g the $10,000 penalty t h a t had 

been imposed by the D i v i s i o n below. That $10,000 amount 

was c a l c u l a t e d a t $1000 per year, per w e l l , from 2003 t o 

2007. That represented the time p e r i o d d u r i n g which 

Nort h s t a r took no a c t i o n t o b r i n g i t s w e l l s i n t o 

compliance. 

Mr. Corbett, president of N o r t h s t a r , t e s t i f i e d 

t h a t the t o t a l cost of plugging both w e l l s , i n c l u d i n g 

surface r e s t o r a t i o n work, would be approximately $50,000, 

which was the amount of the f i n a n c i a l assurance N o r t h s t a r 

had posted. You can see t h a t a t the t r a n s c r i p t , page 49. 

To do the work, Northstar had taken out a $50,000 

loan which would come due i n December, and Mr. Corbett 

s t a t e d he would need t o have the f i n a n c i a l assurance 

released a t t h a t time so he could pay o f f h i s loan. You 

can f i n d t h a t a t the t r a n s c r i p t a t page 65. 

At the close of the hearing, the Commission moved 

t o adopt an order, and t h a t motion i s a t pages 75 through 

76 of the t r a n s c r i p t . The Commission upheld the $10,000 

penalty but allowed Northstar c r e d i t f o r , quote, the a c t u a l 

amounts expended t o do the surface r e s t o r a t i o n , close 

quote, and stayed the payment date t o the date t h a t the 

bond would be released. I n other words, he'd get h i s bond 

released, he'd have the money necessary. 

On November 8th, 2007, the Commission issued i t s 
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order, and t h a t ' s E x h i b i t 3 i n your packet. The language 

at issue i n t h i s hearing i s at page 3, paragraphs 2 and 3. 

I t s t a t e s Northstar O i l and Gas Corporation s h a l l r e s t o r e 

the w e l l s i t e s associated w i t h the w e l l s i n the manner 

provided i n Subsection B of 19.15.4.202 NMAC and seed the 

w e l l s i t e s w i t h seed of p l a n t s n a t i v e t o the area by 

December 15, 2 007. 

I t goes on t o say, I f Northstar O i l and Gas 

Corporation r e s t o r e s the w e l l s i t e s and seeds the w e l l 

s i t e s w i t h seeds of p l a n t s n a t i v e t o the area by December 

15, 2007, i t may reduce the c i v i l penalty by i t s a c t u a l 

expenditures f o r r e s t o r i n g the w e l l s i t e s . The D i v i s i o n 

s h a l l not release Northstar O i l and Gas Corporation's 

f i n a n c i a l assurance u n t i l Northstar O i l and Gas Corporation 

r e s t o r e s the w e l l s i t e s , seeds the w e l l s i t e s w i t h seeds of 

p l a n t s n a t i v e t o the area and provides i n v o i c e s and proof 

of payment f o r the r e s t o r a t i o n costs. 

Northstar has now asked f o r release of i t s 

f i n a n c i a l assurance. The OCD seeks guidance from the 

Commission on whether Northstar has met the terms of the 

order on two p o i n t s . 

The f i r s t p o i n t i s , may we release the f i n a n c i a l 

assurance i n t h i s case? The order s t a t e d t h a t N o r t h s t a r 

needed t o r e s t o r e the s i t e s , reseed and provide proof of — 

provide invoices and proof of payment. 
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You w i l l hear from our witness t h a t they have 

r e s t o r e d the s i t e s according t o the r u l e . That p o i n t has 

been met. They d i d provide invoices, but we do not have 

proof of payment. 

They have not reseeded e i t h e r s i t e . They have 

asked the OCD t o waive the requirement t h a t they reseed one 

of the s i t e s , the Davie Number 1, because the land and 

mineral owner does not want i t reseeded. 

Because reseeding i s a requirement of the 

Commission order, the OCD has taken the p o s i t i o n t h a t only 

the Commission can waive t h a t requirement. So we're asking 

you today whether you intend t o waive t h a t requirement. 

We have not heard from Northstar on why they 

haven't reseeded the other s i t e , the Barbara Number 1. We 

have no explanation a t t h i s p o i n t . 

So on the f i r s t issue, may we release the 

f i n a n c i a l assurance, they have r e s t o r e d the s i t e s , they've 

provided invoices but no proof of payment, and they have 

not reseeded. 

Now the second p o i n t t h a t we need c l a r i f i c a t i o n 

on i s whether we should reduce the penalty and, i f so, by 

what amount? 

Now the order s t a t e d t h a t t o get a r e d u c t i o n of 

the penalty, Northstar needed t o r e s t o r e the l o c a t i o n and 

reseed the l o c a t i o n by December 15, 2 007. There was a 
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deadline involved i n t h i s p a r t of the order. I f they met 

the deadline, they could reduce the penalty by t h e i r a c t u a l 

expenditures f o r r e s t o r i n g the w e l l s i t e s . 

Again, on r e s t o r a t i o n , they have r e s t o r e d the 

w e l l s i t e s . However, the r e s t o r a t i o n was not complete by 

the December 15 deadline. 

The second p o i n t , reseeding, has again — has not 

been done. 

The t h i r d p o i n t , have they provided i n v o i c e s and 

proof of payment and what do we do w i t h those — t h a t 

information? 

They provided copies of invoices w i t h a l e t t e r of 

March 11, 2008, claiming $12,857.63 i n costs. N o r t h s t a r 

d i d not provide proof of payment, although many of the 

in v o i c e s have handwritten notations i n d i c a t i n g t h a t the 

in v o i c e s have been paid, w i t h a check number and a payment 

date, but we have no r e c e i p t s or canceled checks. 

OCD's p o s i t i o n i s t h a t Northstar has not provided 

proof of payment, and we also request guidance from the 

Commission on how they intended us t o reduce the pe n a l t y , 

i f a t a l l . Was the i n t e n t t h a t the penalty be reduced by 

costs i n c u r r e d a f t e r the hearing, or may we also reduce by 

costs i n c u r r e d before the hearing, because a s u b s t a n t i a l 

amount of these costs were in c u r r e d before the hearing? 

Also, d i d the Commission i n t e n d t o in c l u d e as 
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r e s t o r a t i o n costs only cost t o r e s t o r e the surface, or also 

costs t o , say, remove equipment? What was meant by 

r e s t o r a t i o n ? And whether the OCC intended t o inc l u d e only 

those r e s t o r a t i o n costs t h a t were not o f f s e t by salvage 

recovery. I n other words, does a c t u a l cost taken i n t o 

account any salvage. 

We take the p o s i t i o n t h a t we can't r e s o l v e the 

f i n a n c i a l assurance issue u n t i l the reseeding and p r o o f - o f -

payment issues are resolved. We can't reduce the c i v i l 

p e n a l t y by a c t u a l expenditures because the terms of the 

order weren't met. The r e s t o r a t i o n and reseeding was not 

completed by the deadline, and we don't have proof of 

payment. 

I f the Commission determines t o waive the 

deadline and the proof-of-payment requirement and the 

reseeding requirement, then we need guidance on how t o 

c a l c u l a t e the penalty. 

And w i t h t h a t I would c a l l Mr. Daniel Sanchez as 

my witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Just a minute. 

Mr. Bruce, would you l i k e t o make an opening 

statement or waive or reserve one? 

MR. BRUCE: I w i l l reserve t h a t f o r c l o s i n g , Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Sanchez, you 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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haven't been p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case, have you? 

MR. SANCHEZ: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You've been sworn a t , but not 

i n , r i g h t ? 

MR. SANCHEZ: That's c o r r e c t . 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

DANIEL SANCHEZ. 

the witness he r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MacQUESTEN: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

A. Daniel Sanchez. 

Q. And where are you employed? 

A. With the New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

Q. What's your p o s i t i o n there? 

A. I'm the compliance and enforcement manager. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the enforcement e f f o r t s 

against Northstar and the order issued by the Commission i n 

the plugging case? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And what does t h a t order r e q u i r e before the 

D i v i s i o n may release the f i n a n c i a l assurance posted by 

Northstar? 

A. For the r e s t o r a t i o n of the two s i t e s f o r which 
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the w e l l s had been plugged, reseeding of those s i t e s , and 

proof of expenses. 

Q. Has Northstar requested release of i t s f i n a n c i a l 

assurance a t t h i s point? 

A. Yes, they have. 

Q. When was i t s f i r s t request f o r t h a t release? 

A. That was January 11th of 2008. 

Q. Would you t u r n t o what's been marked as E x h i b i t 4 

i n t h i s case? 

A. Okay. 

Q. I s t h a t the OCD's l e t t e r responding t o 

Northstar's request f o r release of i t s f i n a n c i a l assurance? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And does i t also — attached t o t h a t l e t t e r i s 

ther e a copy of Northstar's request? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i s the date of the OCD's response t o 

Northstar? 

A. January 15th of 2008. That was the date we 

received the l e t t e r from Northstar. 

Q. And the l e t t e r t h a t — I'm so r r y , the l e t t e r t h a t 

the OCD sent t o Northstar? 

A. — was January 15th. 

Q. January 15th. 

At t h a t time had the s i t e s been restored? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Not o f f i c i a l l y . 

Q. Had the s i t e s been reseeded? 

A. No. 

Q. Had we received invoices and proof of payment? 

A. No, we d i d not. 

Q. Were these various d e f i c i e n c i e s explained i n the 

l e t t e r of January 15th? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. Was there a second request f o r release of 

f i n a n c i a l assurance from Northstar? 

A. Yes, yes, there was. 

Q. And i s E x h i b i t 5 the correspondence back and 

f o r t h on t h a t request? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And what i s the date of the l e t t e r from the OCD 

responding t o N o r t h s t a r 1 s second request? 

A. That was January 30th of 2008. 

Q. At t h a t time were the s i t e s ready f o r i n s p e c t i o n 

t o determine i f they could be released? 

A. No, they were not. The company had y e t t o submit 

a C-103 showing t h a t they were ready f o r i n s p e c t i o n . 

Q. And t h a t requirement had been explained i n the 

f i r s t l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. Were the s i t e s reseeded a t t h a t time? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. No, they were not. 

Q. Did Northstar o f f e r any explanation f o r not 

reseeding the s i t e s ? 

A. Only f o r one of they s i t e s , t h a t the landowner 

had requested t h a t the s i t e not be reseeded. 

Q. And i s t h a t request attached t o E x h i b i t Number 5? 

A. Yes, i t i s , i t ' s a l e t t e r from the owner, 

landowner, Mr. B i l l Davie, and i t was submitted and 

n o t a r i z e d and was a c t u a l l y submitted December 7t h of 2007. 

Q. I f you look a t the bottom of t h a t l e t t e r , the 

date of the notary appears t o — the December appears t o be 

crossed out? 

A. Yes, the a c t u a l date on the notary was January 

14th of 2008. 

Q. And the r e c e i p t date stamped on t h i s ? 

A. January 22nd, 2008. 

Q. Did Northstar o f f e r any explanation a t t h i s time 

regarding why they had not reseeded the other w e l l , the 

Barbara Number 1? 

A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. Did Northstar provide invoices and proof of 

payment a t t h i s time? 

A. No. 

Q. Was there a t h i r d request f o r release of the 

f i n a n c i a l assurance? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. And i s E x h i b i t Number 6 — 

A. Yes, t h a t — 

Q. — the exchange of correspondence on t h a t 

request? 

A. Yes, t h a t request was made on March 11th, 2008, 

by Northstar. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t had Northstar met the requirements 

t o r e s t o r e the s i t e s according t o the r u l e requirements? 

A. They met one of the requirements, and t h a t was 

the s i t e r e s t o r a t i o n . They had submitted the C-103, and 

the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e had sent out an inspector t o check out 

the s i t e t o make sure i t had been cleaned up. 

Q. Have you spoken t o the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. Yes, I have, t h i s morning, as a matter of f a c t . 

Q. Are they s a t i s f i e d w i t h the s i t e r e s t o r a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. I n accordance w i t h the OCD rules? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 7 and 8 the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n 

h i s t o r i e s f o r the two w e l l s at issue? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. And do they i n d i c a t e t h a t the l o c a t i o n s are 

clean? 

A. Yes, they do. 
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Q. Do they i n d i c a t e whether the s i t e s have been 

reseeded? 

A. The notes show t h a t the l o c a t i o n does not appear 

t o be reseeded. 

Q. And what i s the date of the i n s p e c t i o n t h a t 

looked a t whether the s i t e s have been reseeded? 

A. March 5th, 2008. That's f o r both s i t e s . 

Q. Now g e t t i n g back t o E x h i b i t Number 6, the 

exchange of correspondence, d i d Northstar provide i n v o i c e s 

of i t s costs w i t h t h i s request? 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. And those invoices are attached t o E x h i b i t Number 

6? 

A. They are. 

Q. Did they also submit proof of payment? 

A. No, they d i d not do t h a t . What they d i d do was, 

they d i d put l i t t l e notes on some of the pages, not on a l l 

of them, showing a date t h a t i t was paid, a check number, 

and the amount. 

Q. What would you be looking f o r , f o r proof of 

payment? What would you expect? 

A. E i t h e r a r e c e i p t or a canceled check. 

Q. So we had three requests from N o r t h s t a r t o 

release the f i n a n c i a l assurance. Has the OCD released the 

f i n a n c i a l assurance? 
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A. No, we have not. 

Q. Why not? 

A. They have s t i l l not met the terms of the 

Commission order. 

Q. What terms are they missing? 

A. The reseeding of the p r o p e r t i e s and s u b m i t t a l of 

proof of payment. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the other issue, whether the 

pen a l t y amount can be reduced and, i f so, by what amount. 

Now t h a t p r o v i s i o n i n the order had a deadline f o r doing 

c e r t a i n t h i n g s ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , the deadline was December 15th, 

2007. 

Q. And what d i d they have t o do by t h a t deadline? 

A. They needed t o complete the r e s t o r a t i o n of the 

surface, reseed the p r o p e r t i e s and provide the invoices and 

proof of payment. 

Q. Okay, was the inv o i c e and proof of payment p a r t 

of t h a t December 15th or — ? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was. 

Q. Okay. At l e a s t we'd have t o have an order t o do 

anything? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did Northstar meet the December 15th 

deadline f o r r e s t o r i n g the s i t e s ? 
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A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. When would you give them c r e d i t f o r r e s t o r i n g the 

s i t e s ? 

A. At the time they submitted the C-103 and the 

D i s t r i c t a c t u a l l y inspected the s i t e s . 

Q. And t h a t would be when? March? 

A. March 5th, I bel i e v e . 

Q. How about the requirement t h a t they reseed the 

s i t e s ? 

A. They have yet t o meet the reseeding s i t e 

requirement. 

Q. Now i f you overlook the deadline issue and you 

overlook the reseeding issue, has Northstar provided the 

invoi c e s and proof of payment we would need t o do anything 

about the penalty? 

A. They have provided the invoices but no proof of 

payment. 

Q. Okay. I f we overlook the deadline issue, the 

reseeding issue and the proof-of-payment issue, can we 

determine the a c t u a l expenses f o r r e s t o r i n g the w e l l s i t e s 

based on the invoices t h a t we have? 

A. We have a d o l l a r amount given t o us based on 

those i n v o i c e s . What we don't have i s whether or not any 

funding was received by the company f o r any salvage i n the 

m a t e r i a l . Some of the invoices i n d i c a t e t h a t the tanks 
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were removed and cleaned, which would lead me t o b e l i e v e 

t h a t they were going t o be sold, and t h a t other equipment 

was removed and cut up, and I would assume t h a t t h a t would 

have been sol d f o r salvage as w e l l . 

Q. So we don't know a c t u a l expenses u n t i l we know 

what they were able t o recoup? 

A. Yes, i f they d i d recoup anything. 

Q. Okay. Do you have any questions about what 

counts as surface r e s t o r a t i o n ? I mean, would — given 

these invoices? 

A. Much of i t was, you know, moving the equipment 

away from the s i t e s , and there wasn't a l o t of ex p l a n a t i o n 

as t o what type of equipment was used t o a c t u a l l y clean up, 

r e s t o r e the s i t e t o i t s i n i t i a l c o n d i t i o n . So yeah, t h a t 

would be a question t h a t I would have. 

Q. So we j u s t need guidance on what the Commission 

intended —-

A. Intended, yes. 

Q. — by surface r e s t o r a t i o n ? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. I f they intend t h a t , then we would count i t . I f 

not, we would not. But we don't know a t t h i s p o i n t what t o 

do. 

Do we have questions about the dates of the 

in v o i c e s , whether i t be — they were supposed t o in c l u d e 
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costs i n c u r r e d before the Commission Hearing versus a f t e r 

the Commission Hearing? 

A. Yes, I believe t h a t t h a t i s a question. Were the 

costs of r e s t o r a t i o n t o occur from the time of the hearing 

forward, ending a t t h a t December 15th deadline, or was i t 

t o include a l l costs coming — t h a t were r e q u i r e d t o close 

those s i t e s , i n c l u d i n g the plugging. 

Q. And again, i t ' s j u s t a p o i n t of c l a r i f i c a t i o n , we 

need t o know the answer one way or the other. 

Could you t u r n t o what has been marked as E x h i b i t 

Number 9 ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Can you t e l l us what t h i s i s ? 

A. This i s an a f f i d a v i t of G a i l MacQuesten, you, 

showing what costs are involved i n b r i n g i n g a case l i k e 

t h i s before the Commission, and t h a t t h e r e i s an a c t u a l 

cost t o taxpayers t o have t o b r i n g these k i n d of cases, 

e s p e c i a l l y when we've worked w i t h operators f o r a lengthy 

p e r i o d of time t o resolve these issues. 

Q. Now these costs only include the costs of 

conducting the hearings; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I t doesn't include the costs of working w i t h the 

operator p r i o r t o the hearing, t o t r y t o o b t a i n compliance 

i n f o r m a l l y ? 
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A. No, i t doesn't. 

Q. And as f a r as hearing costs, i t ' s only o u t - o f -

pocket expenses, i t ' s not s a l a r i e s of the various 

p a r t i c i p a n t s i n the hearing, the witnesses, the 

Commissioners, the attorneys and so f o r t h ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I t ' s j u s t advertisements, t r a n s c r i p t s , witness 

t r a v e l , c e r t i f i e d m a i l , t h i n g s l i k e t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what was the t o t a l of those out-of-pocket 

expenses t o date? 

A. To date, $1110.24. 

Q. Okay. Why b r i n g t h i s up? 

A. Well, every time we have t o work w i t h an operator 

or b r i n g an operator t o hearing, i t ' s j u s t not t r y i n g t o 

get an operator t o come i n t o compliance w i t h c e r t a i n 

issues, but i t ' s meant t o show t h a t t h e r e i s a cost t o the 

taxpayer f o r us t o have t o do t h i s over and over again, and 

we f e e l l i k e i f we could get a l i t t l e b i t more compliance 

or work w i t h them a l i t t l e b i t b e t t e r w i t h t h i s , where they 

would respond a l i t t l e b i t more t o us, then i t would negate 

some of those costs i f not a l l of them, so.... 

Q. How i n a c t i v e w e l l s does New Mexico have r i g h t now 

out of compliance w i t h Rule 201? 

A. 2657. 
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Q. And t h i s case was t o take a c t i o n on two? 

A. Just two w e l l s , yes. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: I would move a t t h i s p o i n t t o 

admit E x h i b i t s 1 through 9. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t s 1 through 9 w i l l be 

admitted. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: That concludes my examination of 

t h i s witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, do you have a 

cross? 

MR. BRUCE: Just one or two questions, Mr. 

Chairman. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. As I understand i t , Mr. Sanchez, the D i v i s i o n ' s 

i n s p e c t i o n shows t h a t everything on s i t e of both w e l l s i s 

f i n e , done according t o D i v i s i o n Rules, except a t t h i s 

p o i n t the Barbara w e l l s i t e has not been reseeded? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , but n e i t h e r — n e i t h e r of the 

s i t e s has been reseeded t o t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Correct, but the surface owner of the Davie w e l l 

s i t e d i d not want i t reseeded? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . What we're asking f o r was a 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

24 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n as t o whether or not the Commission would 

accept t h a t as w e l l . 

Q. The only other question I have i s , why d i d you 

r e q u i r e Mr. Davie's l e t t e r t o be acknowledged? 

A. That came from the D i s t r i c t Supervisor wanting 

a c t u a l proof t h a t a l e t t e r t o them accepting c e r t a i n 

c o n d i t i o n s on a closure was l e g i t i m a t e . I r e a l l y can't 

answer much more from Charlie P e r r i n , the D i s t r i c t 

Supervisor's — 

Q. But you had no — the D i v i s i o n had no evidence 

t h a t the l e t t e r was i l l e g i t i m a t e ? 

A. No. 

MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. What was the date f o r the plugging of the 

Barbara? Was t h a t November 21st, 2007? I'm l o o k i n g midway 

through E x h i b i t Number 6, t h i s i n v o i c e from A-Plus Well 

Service. 

A. There are two here. One was f o r November 16th, 

and one was f o r October 12th. 

Q. So can we f i g u r e what date i t was a c t u a l l y 

plugged? 

A. They have a note on the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y , 
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E x h i b i t Number 7, i n d i c a t i n g on December 3rd t h a t t h e r e was 

an i n s p e c t i o n done, and i t looked l i k e e v e r y t h i n g other 

than t h a t a reseeding had been done and plugged. 

So I would assume t h a t the plugging probably 

occurred on t h a t November 16th date, or thereabouts. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Commissioner B a i l e y , t he 

t r a n s c r i p t of the hearing before the Commission a t page 12 

has the testimony of Charlie P e r r i n t h a t the Davie 1 

well b o r e plugging and completion was September 6t h , and the 

Barbara wellbore was f i n i s h e d October 9. 

Q. (By Commissioner Bailey) October 9. I'm t r y i n g 

t o remember weather conditions i n October and November, i f 

t h e r e was already f e e t of snow on the ground up i n t h a t 

p a r t of the country? 

A. I was up there i n October, and the weather was 

a c t u a l l y p r e t t y nice. I f there was any snow up t h e r e , i t 

was very l i t t l e . 

Q. So t h a t would have been the i d e a l time f o r 

reseeding? 

A. Probably. 

Q. But i f the w e l l was a c t u a l l y plugged i n November, 

i t ' s questionable whether or not the snow was already on 

the ground and the ground frozen by t h a t time? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Because i n my mind i t ' s p o i n t l e s s t o put seed out 
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on top of snow w i t h frozen ground. But i f i t had go t t e n 

reseeded before the ground was frozen and the snows had 

come i n , t h a t would have been an i d e a l time. So I mean 

i t 1 s important i n my mind — 

A. Yeah, when the — 

Q. — t o f i x t h a t date. 

A. Okay. So i t looks l i k e October 9th, according t o 

the record, i s the time t h a t i t was a c t u a l l y plugged. And 

e a r l y October — Like I said, when I was up t h e r e i n l a t e 

October, the weather was s t i l l p r e t t y good. So i f they 

would have reseeded a t t h a t time, I can't imagine t h a t 

t h e r e would have been a problem w i t h the weather. 

Q. I f the plugging happened i n October? 

A. I n October, yes. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l I needed t o ask 

you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I don't have any questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, i s there any i n d i c a t i o n i n the 

l e t t e r t h a t Mr. Davie understands t h a t he w i l l be 

responsible t o the OCD, should the r e s t o r a t i o n of t h a t s i t e 

be r e q u i r e d i n the future? 

A. Not t h a t I could see. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

Any r e d i r e c t , Ms. MacQuesten? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MacQUESTEN: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 2, 

the t r a n s c r i p t of the hearing below — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — and what i s the date of t h a t hearing, on the 

cover page? 

A. October 11th, 2007. 

Q. And t h a t was the hearing before the Commission? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And North Star's p o s i t i o n a t t h a t hearing was 

t h a t the wellbores were plugged a t t h a t time? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Thank you. That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, anything else? 

MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commission? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Sanchez, thank you very 

much. 

Ms. MacQuesten, i s t h a t your only witness? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes, s i r . 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Did you have a close, or would 

you r a t h e r — We'll w a i t u n t i l a f t e r he's done. 

Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: I f we could c a l l Mr. Corbett on the 

phone. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do you have the number? 

MR. BRUCE: 412-352-3787. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 412- — ? 

MR. BRUCE: 412-352-3- — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Whoops. 412- — ? 

MR. BRUCE: 412-352-3787. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do you want t o answer i t ? 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah. 

MR. CORBETT: John Corbett. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Corbett, t h i s i s Jim Bruce, and 

we're on record a t the O i l Conservation Commission Hearing 

r i g h t now. 

MR. CORBETT: Very w e l l . 

MR. BRUCE: And Mr. Chairman, I t u r n i t over t o 

you. I b e l i e v e the witness needs t o be sworn i n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Corbett, would you r a i s e 

your r i g h t hand, please? 

MR. CORBETT: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm going t o ask the c o u r t 

r e p o r t e r t o swear you i n . He's going t o speak r e a l loud so 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

29 

you can hear him. 

COURT REPORTER: Mr. Corbett, can you hear me? 

MR. CORBETT: I can. There's a buzz, but I can 

hear you. 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Corbett, can you hear me from 

where I'm standing here? 

MR. CORBETT: Uh-huh. 

JOHN CORBETT (Present by telephone), 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. Corbett, f o r the record can you s t a t e your 

name and your a s s o c i a t i o n w i t h Northstar O i l and Gas 

Corporation? 

A. Yes, I'm John Corbett, and I am the p r e s i d e n t of 

Nort h s t a r O i l and Gas. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Counsel, can you hear? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes, thank you. 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) And Mr. Corbett, you t e s t i f i e d i n 

the previous Commission Hearing on t h i s matter; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. And i t was you who d i r e c t e d the plugging and 

abandonment and r e s t o r a t i o n of the w e l l s i t e s f o r 

Northstar? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Mr. Corbett, I've marked c e r t a i n e x h i b i t s 

which I b e l i e v e you have copies of. Did you r e c e i v e t h a t 

package i n the m a i l from me? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Okay. Could you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 1 f o r the 

Commission, Northstar E x h i b i t 1, j u s t very b r i e f l y ? 

A. Yeah, E x h i b i t 1 i s a t a b u l a t i o n of i n v o i c e s f o r 

work t h a t was done t o r e s t o r e the surface of two w e l l s , the 

Davie and the Barbara. 

Q. Okay, and are these — i s E x h i b i t 1 t r u e and 

c o r r e c t copies of the invoices you received from v a r i o u s 

c o n t r a c t o r s f o r t h a t work? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Now were these b i l l s paid, these i n v o i c e s paid? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. Mr. Corbett, the Commission witness has already 

t e s t i f i e d , and one t h i n g they asked about was, they d i d n ' t 

r e c e i v e proof of payment, i n other words, e i t h e r r e c e i p t s 

or canceled checks. Would i t be p o s s i b l e f o r you t o 

provide — copy and provide t o the Commission canceled 

checks showing payment of these b i l l s ? 
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A. Yes, I can — I can provide a photocopy of those. 

Q. Okay. The second matter i s , some of the b i l l s 

predate the Commission hearing, some of these i n v o i c e s f o r 

work done. But i n your opinion was a l l of t h i s work 

necessary t o clean and r e s t o r e the surface of the two w e l l 

s i t e s ? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. Were there any other costs i n c u r r e d , f o r 

instance, f o r cleanup, any r e c o n d i t i o n i n g , e t cet e r a , of 

tanks? 

A. Yes, there was. There was — Just o f f the top of 

my head, there are two invoices t h a t t o t a l e d almost $8000 

th e r e , incremental t o there. 

Q. And what was t h a t work f o r ? 

A. One of them was r e c o n d i t i o n i n g a tank, and then 

another was f o r some dirt-moving. We dug up the p i t , and I 

d i d n ' t get t h a t i n v o i c e u n t i l — i n f a c t , j u s t about three 

weeks ago. 

Q. Okay. Now w i t h respect t o the r e c o n d i t i o n i n g of 

the tank, you d i d not include t h a t b i l l i n t h i s e x h i b i t 

package correc t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , n e i t h e r of those i n v o i c e s are 

included here. 

Q. Now, do you hope t o s e l l t h a t tank and a t l e a s t 

recoup some of t h a t money? 
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A. Yeah, t h a t ' s my hope. 

Q. And so t h a t ' s why you d i d not include t h a t i n the 

l i s t i n g of these invoices? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Now what work remains t o be done t o take care of 

e i t h e r of these w e l l s i t e s ? 

A. Just an hour ago I spoke w i t h the man who was 

s u p e r v i s i n g t h i s work f o r me, and — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Corbett, could you speak 

up a l i t t l e b i t ? 

THE WITNESS: I spoke about — probably two hours 

ago w i t h the man who's supervising t h i s work f o r me. 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) And who i s t h a t ? 

A. The man's name i s West Hahn, he's w i t h Walsh 

Engineering. 

Q. And what d i d he inform you? 

A. He ordered a peat mix f o r the Barbara Number 1 

l o c a t i o n , and t h a t a r r i v e d w i t h i n the l a s t week i n 

Farmington. I t ' s a t h i s o f f i c e now, and he has a 

c o n t r a c t o r who i s prepared t o go and put i t out. 

Apparently i t ' s been q u i t e windy the l a s t few days, and so 

they aren't able t o do t h a t work. But he was hoping t o 

have i t done t h i s week. 

Q. Okay. But admittedly the reseeding of the 

Barbara s i t e has not been done at t h i s time? 
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A. Yeah, I concede t h a t . 

Q. And w i l l t h a t be an a d d i t i o n a l expense t o be 

i n c u r r e d by you? 

A. Yes, i t w i l l . The seed mix i t s e l f i s between 

$700 and $750. He has asked f o r t h a t i n v o i c e and has not 

received t h a t y e t from the vendor. And then t h e r e w i l l be 

some incremental costs t o apply i t . 

Q. Okay. And again, i n your opin i o n were a l l of the 

costs t h a t are l i s t e d i n E x h i b i t 1, plus the a d d i t i o n a l 

costs t h a t you have i n c u r r e d , necessary t o r e c l a i m and 

r e s t o r e the surface? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. The second e x h i b i t i s the C-103s which you 

signed. Were those submitted t o the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. Okay. And E x h i b i t 3 i s simply the correspondence 

t h a t you had — t h a t you sent t o Ms. MacQuesten a t the OCD, 

i s i t not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, other than the reseeding on the Barbara 1 

w e l l s i t e , what was the approximate date of the l a s t work 

done on t h a t w e l l s i t e ? 

A. That was probably — probably i n December. Let 

me go through these invoices and see. But I t h i n k — I'm 

p r e t t y sure t h a t t h a t would have been i n December. 
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Q. And would reseeding be the l a s t t h i n g you would 

do on a w e l l s i t e ? 

A. Yes, i t would. 

Q. Mr. Corbett, I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have f o r you, 

but were E x h i b i t s 1, 2 and 3 compiled from N o r t h s t a r ' s — 

prepared by you or compiled from Northstar's business 

records? ^ 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. BRUCE: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I ' d move the 

admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 3 and pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any o b j e c t i o n t o the admission 

of E x h i b i t s 1, 2 and 3? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: No, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The e x h i b i t s w i l l be so 

admitted. 

Ms. MacQuesten, do you have a cross-examination 

of the witness? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes, please. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MacQUESTEN: 

Q. Mr. Corbett, t h i s i s G a i l MacQuesten. Can you 

hear me? 

A. Yes, I can. 

Q. Okay. At the beginning of your testimony you 

t a l k e d about some a d d i t i o n a l costs t h a t aren't included y e t 
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regarding the r e c o n d i t i o n i n g of a tank or tanks? 

A. That's r i g h t , there's r e c o n d i t i o n i n g of a tank, 

and t h e r e i s some earthmoving too t h a t i s not included 

here. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I'm looking a t the summary of the 

expenses, the f i r s t page of Northstar's E x h i b i t Number 1, 

and I see a number of e n t r i e s regarding tanks. On the 

r i g h t - h a n d column there's t r a n s p o r t tank, dismantle and 

t r a n s p o r t tank, dismantle and t r a n s p o r t tank, heat tank 

bottoms, pressure clean tank, escort f o r oversized load 

( t a n k ) , escort f o r oversized load ( t a n k ) , e s cort f o r 

oversized load ( t a n k ) . 

And i f I look a t the d o l l a r amount, we're 

probably over $5000 on those costs. So what else i s l e f t 

t o do on the tanks? 

A. There was one tank t h a t there was concern t h a t i t 

was not i n saleable c o n d i t i o n . They — We inspected the 

tanks and the — there was concern t h a t i t j u s t wasn't 

saleable, and so there was some r e p a i r t o one of the tanks. 

Q. So t h i s i s so you can recoup some costs from the 

equipment? S e l l i n g the tanks? 

A. Yeah, r i g h t . 

Q. Do you know how much you're going t o get from 

r e s e l l i n g the tanks? 

A. I am hoping t h a t i t w i l l break even. 
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Q. Are you — 

A. The options w i t h t h a t tank were t o scrap i t or t o 

r e c o n d i t i o n i t f o r reuse, sale and reuse. The costs on 

those two — i t was going t o be k i n d of close t o even, i t 

was going t o have t o be — there was — You can see the one 

tank t h a t we pressure-cleaned. This was going t o i n v o l v e 

pressure-cleaning and then c u t t i n g up and disposing of the 

tank. 

The a l t e r n a t i v e was t o clean i t and then 

r e i n f o r c e some of the areas t h a t were of concern, and hope 

t h a t we can recoup those costs. 

Q. So the cleaning of the tank and the work t h a t you 

want t o do on the tank i n the f u t u r e i s so t h a t you can 

s e l l them and recoup those costs? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. Are you going t o be able t o get any other salvage 

o f f of these two s i t e s ? 

A. That was i t . We're — I t h i n k we have taken care 

of e v e r y t h i n g t h a t we can, and a l l t h a t remains i s the one 

tank. 

Q. Okay. Now, Mr. Corbett, I want t o ask you some 

questions about your testimony at the hearing before the 

Commission, and I may have you at a disadvantage because I 

don't know i f you have a copy of the t r a n s c r i p t . 

A. I don't have i t , but I am w e l l enough r e s t e d , I 
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may be able t o r e c a l l . 

Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l t a l k i n g about the — hoping 

t o get release of your $50,000 f i n a n c i a l assurance? 

A. I do remember t h a t , yes. 

Q. And you were hoping t o — and you also — d i d n ' t 

you t e s t i f y about t a k i n g out a loan i n the amount of about 

$50,000 t o do the work you wanted t o do on the wells? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t loan was coming due i n December of 2007? 

A. December 15th, r i g h t . 

Q. Right, and t h a t was the magic date t h a t you 

wanted t o get t h i s resolved so t h a t you could get your bond 

released and pay o f f t h a t loan; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . You're wondering what happened. 

Q. Yeah. 

A. The — You r e c a l l t h a t I sent you a l e t t e r , and 

t h a t i s included i n E x h i b i t 3. My hope i n t h a t was t h a t 

t h e r e was some way t h a t — because the w e l l s were plugged, 

t h a t t h e r e would be a way t o release the bond, and — w i t h 

k i n d of g e t t i n g t h i s done by remote c o n t r o l , and so we 

d i d n ' t — we j u s t weren't ready, i t wasn't t h e r e y e t . 

What I then was forced t o do was contact the bank 

and extend t h a t loan, and I extended t h a t t o the t h r e e 

months, which took us t o March the 15th, and — when we 

s t i l l were not ready, the work hadn't been f i n i s h e d , and so 
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I had extended i t again and t h a t was t o J u l y . 

Q. Now t h a t l e t t e r you're r e f e r r i n g t o where you're 

asking t o release the bond, t h a t E x h i b i t Number 3, i s t h a t 

the l e t t e r of January 11th, 2008? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now you were aware t h a t the order had given you a 

deadline of December 15th/ i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. But you d i d n ' t contact us about a release u n t i l 

mid-January? 

A. I d i d n ' t . I spoke w i t h C h a r l i e P e r r i n i n 

December, p r i o r t o the 15th, t o see what remained t o be 

done. He had a man — because I — I'm — I worked w i t h — 

as I s a i d , by remote c o n t r o l , and the guy t h a t I was 

working w i t h s a i d , w e l l , he thought t h a t we're... 

I t a l k e d w i t h the OCD. Mr. P e r r i n was out of the 

o f f i c e a t other hearings i n Santa Fe when we contacted 

him — I contacted him. And he had a man — I t h i n k i t was 

Henry Villa n u e v a — who had gone out and looked a t the 

w e l l s . I understood from my conversation w i t h them t h a t 

t h e r e was more work t o be done. 

So I extended the loan a t t h a t p o i n t and spoke 

w i t h my man i n the f i e l d and asked i f he would please 

get... 

And t h a t brought us t o the p o i n t , then, where I 
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sent the l e t t e r , t h i n k i n g t h a t we were probably i n a p r e t t y 

good place. 

That was i n January, and the l o c a t i o n was covered 

w i t h snow a t the time. Having cleared o f f , I understand 

t h a t the seed needs t o go down, and so we've bought t h a t , 

and t h a t w i l l be put down as soon as p o s s i b l e . I'm s t i l l 

hoping t o get my bond released, r a t h e r than w a i t . 

Q. Okay, so on January 11th when you sent t h a t 

l e t t e r , you say you thought you were i n a p r e t t y good 

place. But the s i t e s had not been reseeded a t t h a t p o i n t ; 

i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you haven't provided the inv o i c e s t h a t would 

allow us t o c a l c u l a t e a red u c t i o n i n the pen a l t y a t t h a t 

time? 

A. Probably not. Honestly, I have l o s t t r a c k of the 

date t h a t I provided t h a t t o you. 

Q. And you haven't f i l e d the C-103s t h a t l e t the 

D i s t r i c t know t h a t they needed t o go out and do a f i n a l 

i n s p e c t i o n of the wells? 

A. Well, what — where I was on C-103, t h a t i f — 

when the w e l l s were plugged by A-Plus w e l l s e r v i c e , they 

f i l e d what I thought were the C-103s. Those were not 

adequate, and then — But I sent the l e t t e r based on those, 

and then sent him i n February another set of C-103s t h a t , 
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having t a l k e d t o A-Plus, understood t h a t t h e r e — j u s t 

covered the plugging of the w e l l . 

I sent another one regarding the abandonment, and 

then Mr. P e r r i n sent me the l a t e s t v e r s i o n of the C-103, 

which you see attached here. 

Q. Okay. Now you're aware you had a deadline t o do 

c e r t a i n t h i n g s by December 15th, r i g h t ? 

A. I'm aware of t h a t . There were s o r t of two t h i n g s 

t h a t happened there. 

F i r s t of a l l , I had my man i n the f i e l d , who — I 

understood through him t h a t t h i n g s were r e a l l y ready t o be 

f i l e d . 

And then the other t h i n g i s t h a t a t about t h a t 

time, the loan was spent. I was t r y i n g t o cover i n v o i c e s 

and t r y i n g — b a s i c a l l y I ran out of money, and have been 

working on my cash flow, I guess, i n order t o continue t o 

get t h i s work done. 

Q. Well, I'm j u s t curious. Why d i d n ' t you w r i t e t o 

the Commission or f i l e a motion and say you needed more 

time or get an excuse from the reseeding i f the reseeding 

i s n ' t a p p r opriate f o r the Davie 1, f o r example? Why d i d n ' t 

you approach the Commission and ask f o r some leave? 

A. Or — or c a l l the Commission. I made a c a l l t o 

the Commission, and — honestly, i t wasn't r e t u r n e d . I 

suppose I should have sent a l e t t e r , I j u s t d i d n ' t . 
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Q. Okay. And i n f a c t , t h i s reopening i s on the 

request of the OCD; i s t h a t r i g h t ? You have s t i l l not come 

t o the Commission and asked f o r r e l i e f from the reseeding 

requirement on the Davie 1 or r e l i e f from the deadlines 

t h a t were given; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I'm a c t u a l l y not seeking a r e l i e f from the 

reseeding requirement. I — Yeah, I probably missed the 

deadline, and I suppose t h a t I should have w r i t t e n 

regarding t h a t . 

Q. But you are asking f o r r e l i e f from reseeding on 

the Davie Number 1; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Well, I'm — on t h a t , I suppose t h a t I am. The 

landowner has asked t h a t I not do t h a t f o r him. 

Q. Right, and you're not i n t e n d i n g t o e i t h e r , are 

you? 

A. Well, i t ' s h i s land. I wouldn't want t o go 

c o n t r a r y t o h i s wishes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But you understand you have an order 

from the Commission t e l l i n g you t h a t you have t o reseed, so 

I'm j u s t c urious: Why not go t o the Commission and say the 

landowner doesn't want i t reseeded, may I have r e l i e f from 

t h a t requirement? 

A. I assumed t h a t t h a t message would have been 

conveyed w i t h h i s l e t t e r , second l e t t e r , the n o t a r i z e d 

l e t t e r , saying please don't do anything more. 
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Q. Well, you would have been aware from my l e t t e r 

t h a t the OCD took the p o s i t i o n t h a t we couldn't a c t i n 

c o n t r a d i c t i o n of an OCC order, r i g h t ? And t h a t you needed 

t h e i r approval? 

A. Apparently I missed t h a t i n your l e t t e r . 

MS. MacQUESTEN: I have no other questions. 

Thank you, Mr. Corbett. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. H e l l o , Mr. Corbett, can you hear me? 

A. Yes, I can. 

Q. I've paged through your invoices i n your E x h i b i t 

Number 1, and the l a t e s t date I can f i n d t o work on the 

Barbara l o c a t i o n i s October 25th. Does t h a t sound about 

r i g h t t o you, instead of December? 

A. That's e n t i r e l y p ossible. Let me look a t — 

Let's see here. 

Q. Well, maybe October 2 6th, i t ' s the p e r i o d of 

October 2 5th through the 2 6th when tanks were being hauled 

around. 

A. Yeah, maybe the l a t e s t t h a t could have been 

r e l a t e d t o the Barbara i s t h i s — no, t h a t — yeah, I guess 

t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are you aware t h a t October would have been the 
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i d e a l time f o r reseeding t h a t l o c a t i o n before the snows, 

before the ground froze? 

A. I suppose i t would. I honestly am not t h a t 

f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t , the dates f o r reseeding. I've gathered 

t h a t the middle of wi n t e r would not have been good, but as 

f a r as the October reseeding date, I couldn't speak t o 

t h a t . 

Q. And the reason why you would not have reseeded 

when t h a t l o c a t i o n was cleared and ready f o r reseeding 

would have been due t o lack of money; i s t h a t your reason? 

A. Well, there were — t h a t was about the time t h a t 

the money was running out. I t ' s also the time t h a t , as I 

sa i d , understanding from my re p r e s e n t a t i v e t h a t the 

l o c a t i o n was p r e t t y good. 

Q. Except f o r the reseeding? 

A. Well, there i s t h a t , yeah, I missed t h a t 

o p p o r t u n i t y . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I have no f u r t h e r 

questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Mr. Corbett, have you sold the tanks t h a t you 

were r e c o n d i t i o n i n g ? 

A. No, I have not. The tanks are i n the — were 
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work f o r me. 

Q. But do I understand you c o r r e c t l y t h a t you expect 

t o be able t o s e l l those tanks? 

A. I do. 

Q. And you t h i n k t h a t the cost t h a t y o u ' l l get from 

those tanks w i l l approximately equal the cost t h a t i t took 

t o clean them and remove them and t r a n s p o r t them? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t , yes. 

Q. And how about — Did you s e l l any other equipment 

from the s i t e ? 

A. There was t u b i n g t h a t was removed from the 

Barbara, t h a t was sold. 

Q. And what was the value of the — d i d you get f o r 

the tubing? 

A. That was probably about $4000. 

Q. And d i d you get any salvage value f o r the 

pumpjack? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. 

A. There was — there was not a pumping u n i t on the 

Barbara. There was a — one on the Davie t h a t had been 

s o r t of salvaged and dismantled, and — before I ever even 

came t o own the w e l l , there was j u s t s o r t of a skeleton of 

one t h e r e . 
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Q. So i s t h a t what was removed? Because t h e r e was 

an i n v o i c e f o r removed pumping u n i t . 

A. That's r i g h t , t h a t was removed and scrapped. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Corbett t h i s i s Mark Fesmire. I've got a 

couple of questions. 

Mr. Davie has requested t h a t you not reseed the 

land on the Davie w e l l ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you understand t h a t the reseeding requirement 

i s not a requirement of the landowner but a requirement of 

the OCD? 

A. I do. 

Q. Does he understand t h a t he could be i n c u r r i n g 

some r e s p o n s i b i l i t y there i f he gives you t h a t waiver? 

A. I doubt t h a t he understands t h a t . My assumption 

has been t h a t he was — i t was h i s land, t h a t he had some 

sovereignty t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. Now you extended t h a t loan on December 

15th. I t was my understanding a t the o r i g i n a l hearing t h a t 

you d i d n ' t have any f u r t h e r c r e d i t capacity, and t h a t ' s why 

we were t r y i n g t o get the release i n time f o r you t o pay 

t h a t debt. 
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A. I appreciate t h a t . I d i d not increase the loan 

a t a l l , but merely extended the term of i t and continued t o 

make i n t e r e s t payments on the p r i n c i p l e . 

Q. Okay, so you d i d have some borrowing c a p a c i t y 

t h e r e t h a t we d i d n ' t know about? 

A. Well, I'm not sure t h a t I had any more value i n 

the — j u s t extended the term of i t . 

Q. Okay. Now you said t h a t you contacted the 

Commission and they d i d n ' t r e t u r n your c a l l . Who d i d you 

contact? 

A. I l e f t a message f o r Ms. MacQuesten. 

Q. And do you remember when t h a t was? 

A. I couldn't begin t o give you the date. I ' l l l e t 

her b r i n g t h a t up, even. 

Q. Okay. Did you contact your attorney? 

A. No, I had hoped t h a t he had served h i s purpose 

and we could j u s t move forward and get t h i s taken care o f . 

Q. Okay, and you understand t h a t according t o the 

OCD records, you were represented by an a t t o r n e y , so Ms. 

MacQuesten probably couldn't have t a l k e d t o you? 

A. I understand, and I had thought t h a t my a t t o r n e y 

might be able t o help me w i t h the f i r s t hearing, and then 

having the hearing behind us, t h a t we could forward and 

j u s t f i n i s h t h i s work. 

Q. Okay, I don't t h i n k we should get i n t o t h a t , 
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then. 

When w i l l you s e l l those tanks? 

A. You know, I could do t h a t a t any p o i n t , I'm sure. 

Q. Why haven't you done i t , then? 

A. The man who's doing the work f o r me, Mr. Hahn, 

s a i d t h a t he might have some use f o r them, and honestly, 

the — again, he's not b i l l e d me f o r any of h i s work on 

overseeing the plugging and abandonment of these w e l l s , and 

so we were going t o negotiate some s o r t of agreement when 

t h i n g s were f i n i s h e d . 

Q. Okay. I want t o t a l k r e a l quick about your — 

some of the invoices t h a t were submitted. I'm a l i t t l e 

concerned. Who i s K e i t h Englehart? 

A. A roustabout who does a f a i r amount of work f o r 

Mr. Hahn. 

Q. Okay. And some of these invoices are signed by 

K e i t h Englehart on your behalf and are payable t o S h i r l e y 

Englehart. Are they the same couple? 

A. They are, I'm sure, the same couple. She — He 

provides the t r u c k t o haul the t h i n g s away. Her — she's 

d r i v i n g a car f o r the escort f o r the oversize loads. 

Q. Okay, so are my concerns misplaced here t h a t 

K e i t h Englehart i s s i g n i n g t o approve in v o i c e s t o pay 

Sharon [ s i c ] Englehart? 

A. No, your — f o r your observation, I w i l l t e l l you 
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t h a t the only reason t h a t I said l e t 1 s go ahead and do t h a t 

i s because the invoices are probably about — w e l l , they're 

approximately $220. 

Q. Yeah. Okay. Well, the only t h i n g t h a t concerns 

me i s t h a t , you know — pardon me f o r saying t h i s , but i t 

might be l i k e you're p l a y i n g w i t h somebody else's money, 

l i k e the OCD's. 

A. Yeah, there have been other people p l a y i n g w i t h 

my money a l l through t h i s . But on t h i s one I thought t h a t 

t h i s i s probably not the one t o d i e on. There were j u s t 

t he t h r e e tanks t o be c a r r i e d o f f , and she provided a 

se r v i c e . 

But the other t h i n g , t h a t you understand, i s t h a t 

i n a community l i k e Farmington there's — i t ' s not uncommon 

t h a t a guy's w i f e might have a r e l a t e d business and work 

w i t h him. 

There i s , I agree, not a business procedure t o 

have him sig n her invoices. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, I have no f u r t h e r 

questions. 

Mr. Bruce, do you have a r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. BRUCE: I do not. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Corbett, t h a t 

concludes our examination of you. We're going t o go ahead 

and f i n i s h the hearing, but I understand t h a t you're on a 
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c e l l phone and you probably don't want t o be connected f o r 

the r e s t of the hearing; i s t h a t correct? 

THE WITNESS: That's t r u e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, thank you very much. 

Ms. MacQuesten, d i d you have anything else of the 

witness? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: No, I don't, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commission? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much, Mr. 

Corbett. 

MR. CORBETT: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t 

Mr. Corbett's phone connection was disconnected a t t h i s 

p o i n t . 

Mr. Bruce, do you have anything else? 

MR. BRUCE: I have nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, d i d you have a 

close? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Just b r i e f l y . We're j u s t 

seeking guidance on what we need t o do under the terms of 

the order. We take the p o s i t i o n t h a t i f the Commission 

orders something, only the Commission can take t h a t order 

away. For example, on the reseeding, i f the landowner 
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doesn't want the s i t e reseeded, we don't take an opi n i o n on 

t h a t . But because we weren't the e n t i t y o r d e r i n g the 

reseeding, we t h i n k t h a t Mr. Corbett needs t o ask the 

Commission t o decide whether the landowner's d e s i r e i s 

something they want t o recognize. 

Other than t h a t , we j u s t need guidance on how t o 

ca r r y out the terms of the order. What we would p r e f e r i s 

t h a t the Commission decide e x a c t l y how they want us t o 

handle the penalty now. 

I f Mr. Corbett has shown enough t h a t you don't 

t h i n k a penalty should be imposed, we need t o know t h a t . 

I f you t h i n k t h a t the penalty amount should be imposed but 

w i t h some r e d u c t i o n , we would r e a l l y appreciate knowing 

what amount t h a t r e d u c t i o n i s , because we've now been 

through t h r e e hearings on t h i s and we don't r e a l l y want t o 

go on a f o u r t h . So i f you j u s t t e l l us what you want us t o 

do, w e ' l l do i t . 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, maybe o f f the c u f f 

f i r s t , when you s t a r t e d asking Mr. Corbett about 

conversations w i t h h i s attorney and you cut i t o f f , I 

d i d n ' t mind because I hadn't had any discussions w i t h him 

since the l a s t hearing. I d i d n ' t speak w i t h him again 

u n t i l probably a week ago. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: To h i s detriment, Mr. Bruce — 

MR. BRUCE: Well — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — I'm a f r a i d . 

MR. BRUCE: — he was — as he sai d , he was 

t r y i n g t o take care of i t on h i s own. 

The p r o v i s i o n of the Commission's p r i o r order 

s t a t e s t h a t i f Northstar O i l and Gas Corporation r e s t o r e s 

the w e l l s i t e s and seeds the w e l l s i t e s w i t h seed or p l a n t s 

n a t i v e t o the area by December 15th, 2007, i t may reduce 

the c i v i l penalty by i t s a c t u a l expenditures f o r r e s t o r i n g 

the w e l l s i t e s . 

I f you look a t the i n v o i c e s , which I b e l i e v e were 

necessary f o r r e c l a i m i n g and r e s t o r i n g the w e l l s i t e , a l l 

of the work was done by December 15th, except f o r t he 

reseeding, and Mr. Corbett acknowledged t h a t . Well i n 

excess of $10,000 was spent, and he's s t i l l spending money. 

We b e l i e v e t h a t these charges were proper. 

The Form C-103s were f i l e d , although the way I 

read the order, t h a t — the December 15th date wasn't the 

deadline f o r f i l i n g the Form C-103s, and r e a l l y the only 

person penalized by t h a t i s Northstar, by the f a c t t h a t he 

had t o continue a t l e a s t paying i n t e r e s t on h i s loan. 

I f the Commission would grant me some time, I'm 

sure I could get the proof of payment, the canceled checks, 

and submit those t o the D i v i s i o n . My only a s s e r t i o n — and 
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I understand Ms. MacQuesten's desire f o r guidance w i t h the 

Commission — I would simply argue t h a t Mr. Corbett, 

N o r t h s t a r O i l and Gas, has s u b s t a n t i a l l y complied w i t h the 

Commission's order. 

As he sai d , perhaps he should have c a l l e d me 

e a r l i e r . I d i d pass on the l e t t e r s t h a t Ms. MacQuesten 

sent t o me, t o him, but he chose more or less t o go alone. 

I apologize t o the Commission f o r t h a t , but I t h i n k — I 

t h i n k over the next few days the one w e l l s i t e w i l l be 

reseeded and we're a t the end of t h i s , and I would again 

request t h a t pursuant t o the p r i o r order, Mr. — Nor t h s t a r 

O i l and Gas be given a t l e a s t some c r e d i t f o r the surface 

r e s t o r a t i o n . 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Any r e b u t t a l ? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Oh, j u s t t o p o i n t out t h a t the 

language i n the order a t page 3, paragraph 2, i s , N o r t h s t a r 

O i l and Gas Corporation s h a l l r e s t o r e the w e l l s i t e s 

associated w i t h the w e l l s i n the manner provided i n 

Subsection B of 19.15.4.202 NMAC and seed, and so f o r t h . 

They needed t o do everything the r u l e r e q u i r e d , 

which included f i l i n g the forms and so f o r t h , and t h a t was 

not done by December 15th. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, Commissioner 

B a i l e y , Commissioner Olson, would e i t h e r — anybody be 
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i n t e r e s t e d i n a break, or do you want t o j u s t — 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time why don't we take 

a 10-minute break, and w e ' l l begin our d e l i b e r a t i o n s on 

t h i s case a t 11:10. 

I s there any reason not t o d e l i b e r a t e i n p u b l i c , 

Commissioner? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: We normally do not. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do not. I'm s o r r y , I keep 

f o r g e t t i n g . 

Okay, we w i l l begin our d e l i b e r a t i o n s a t 11:10 i n 

p r i v a t e . 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 10:59 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 11:12 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the record. 

Let the record r e f l e c t i t ' s 11:10. 

The Commission w i l l go i n t o executive session t o 

discuss Case Number 13- — t o d e l i b e r a t e i n Case Number 

13,920. 

Before we go i n t o executive session, i s t h e r e any 

business t h a t we need t o address? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. At t h i s time w e ' l l go 

i n t o executive session. 
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(Off the record a t 11:12 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 11:18 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, l e t ' s go back on the 

record. 

Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t the Commission has 

completed i t s d e l i b e r a t i o n s on Case Number 13,920, 

reopened, t h a t during the executive session the Commission 

discussed nothing but Case Number 13,92 0. 

We've come t o a decisi o n i n t h a t case, and we've 

i n s t r u c t e d Counsel t o d r a f t an order t o t h a t e f f e c t , t o be 

prepared f o r s i g n i n g a t the May 9th, 2008, Commission 

meeting. 

B a s i c a l l y the order w i l l d i r e c t Mr. — Nor t h s t a r 

O i l and Gas and Mr. Corbett t o pay the $10,000 p e n a l t y , t o 

re-seed the Barbara l o c a t i o n — and what was the other — 

the r e was a t h i r d provision? 

MS. BADA: Not t o have t o reseed the Davie. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — and t h a t he does not have 

t o reseed the Davie. 

The deci s i o n as made renders moot the question on 

what the Commission intended w i t h respect t o the c r e d i t s 

f o r work t h a t was done a f t e r the i n i t i a l order, and the 

order w i l l so r e f l e c t and be reviewed a t the next 

Commission meeting. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: And the bond w i l l not be 
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released u n t i l we have proof of the completion of a c t i v i t y ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Absolutely. 

Counsel, do we need a motion? 

MS. BADA: So not released u n t i l payment of the 

pena l t y and — 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: — reseeding — 

MS. BADA: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: — i s completed. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Approval of the f i n a l 

a c t i o n s , reseeding. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commission — I mean, Counsel, 

i s t h e r e anything else we need t o address a t t h i s meeting? 

MS. BADA: (Shakes head) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Secretary Davidson, i s t h e r e 

anything you t h i n k we need t o address? 

MS. DAVIDSON: (Shakes head) 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Do you want me t o — I ' l l 

make a motion on t h a t so t h a t we need t o — 

MS. BADA: Motion t o — 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: — motion t o d i r e c t counsel 

t o prepare t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I s the r e a second? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n fa v o r , s i g n i f y by 
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saying aye. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. Let the record r e f l e c t 

t h a t the motion c a r r i e d , and t h a t counsel w i l l be so 

d i r e c t e d . 

I s there any other business before t he 

Commission? 

Seeing none, the Chair would e n t e r t a i n a motion 

t o adjourn. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I so move. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n f a v o r , s i g n i f y by 

saying aye. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t 

the motion c a r r i e d and the Commission meeting was adjourned 

a t 11:23 a.m. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

11:23 a.m.) 

* * * 
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